
 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  
ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0   PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5   BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0   FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3   RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0   POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3   PUBLIC WORKS 
4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Pedro “Pete” M. Sanchez, Mayor 
Mike Hudson, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Jane Day 
Sam Derting 
Michael A. Segala 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 
Every Month 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
SUISUN CITY COUNCIL, REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2011 

6:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

(Next Ord. No. – 721) 
 (Next City Council Res. No. 2011 – 84) 

(Next Redevelopment Agency Res. No. RA2011 – 27) 
(Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2011 – 05) 

ROLL CALL 
Council / Board Members 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Invocation 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

1. Presentation of Proclamation to Pastor, Dr. Claybon Lea, Jr., Proclaiming October 2011 as 
“Mount Calvary Baptist Church Month”.     

2. Presentation of a Proclamation to Fire Chief Mike O’Brien Proclaiming October 9-15, 2011 
as “National Fire Prevention Week”.     

3. Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting   
a. Presentation of Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to 

Finance Department Staff. 

b. Presentation of Award of Financial Reporting Achievement to Elizabeth Luna, Senior 
Accountant.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 
agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers 
should be identified at this time.) 



September 20, 2011 City Council / Redevelopment Agency /Housing Authority Agenda Page 2 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

Joint City Council / Redevelopment Agency  

4. Council/Agency Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings of the Suisun 
City Council and Redevelopment Agency Board held on September 6, 2011– (Hobson).    

5. City/Agency File and Receive a Preliminary Draft Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
Pursuant to Part 1.8 of Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code – (Garben).   

6. Adoption of Remittance Agreement Between the Suisun City Redevelopment Agency and 
the City of Suisun City – (Garben).   

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2011-___:  Approving a Remittance Agreement with 
the Suisun City Redevelopment Agency in Accordance with AB X1 27. 

b. Agency Adoption of Resolution No. RA 2011-___:  Approving a Remittance Agreement 
with the City of Suisun City in Accordance with AB X1 27. 

7. Council Approval of the August 2011 Payable Warrants inclusive in the amount of 
$1,037,379.20 and Agency Approval of the August 2011 Payable Warrants inclusive in the 
amount of $44,235.97 – (Finance).    

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

8. Budget Workshop in Response to State’s Actions to Eliminate Redevelopment – 
(Bragdon/Anderson). 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

9. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff –  

10. Mayor/Council -Chair/Boardmembers 

CLOSED SESSION   
City Council   

Pursuant to California Government Code section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 
Session for the purpose of:   

Joint City Council / Redevelopment Agency    

11. PERSONNEL MATTERS       
Public Employee Performance Evaluation:  City Manager/Executive Director.   

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 
Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 



September 20, 2011 City Council / Redevelopment Agency /Housing Authority Agenda Page 3 
 

 

A complete packet of information containing Staff Reports and exhibits related to each item is available for public 
review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting.  Agenda related writings or documents 
provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority 
meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection during normal business 
hours.  An agenda packet is available for review in the City Manager’s Office during normal business hours. 

PLEASE NOTE: 
1. The City Council hopes to conclude its public business by 11:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after the 11:00 P.M. 

cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all items 
scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 
3. City Council agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at: 

City Hall Fire Station Senior Center 
701 Civic Center Boulevard 621 Pintail Drive 318 Merganser Drive 

  
 











M I N U T E S 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

7:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

ROLL CALL  

Mayor / Chairman Sanchez called the meeting to order at 7:09 PM with Council / Board 

Members, Derting, Hudson, and Segala present. Council / Board Member Day was absent. 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Derting. 

Invocation was given by City Manager Bragdon. 

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

1. Introduction and Swearing in of new Suisun City Reserve Police Officer Tom Kvamme – 

(Dadisho).    

Will be done at a later date. 

2. Presentation of Proclamation to Patricia McKnight, Corresponding Secretary of the Chief 

Solano Chapter of the National Society Daughters of the American Revolution, Proclaiming 

September 17-23, 2011 as Constitution Week in Suisun City. 

Mayor Sanchez read and Council Member Hudson presented the proclamation to Ms. 

McKnight. 

3. Presentation of Proclamation Joining the National Moment of Remembrance of the 10
th

 

Anniversary of September 11
th

. 

Mayor Sanchez read and Council Member Segala presented the proclamation to Fire 

Chief O’Brien and Police Chief Dadisho. Chief O’Brien invited citizens to attend 

memorial on Sunday, September 11, 2011, at 12:30 PM. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this 

agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker). 

 

Billy Gaither expressed concern about the signal at Sunset and Railroad Avenue and stated he was proud 

of the Council’s work throughout the years. 

 

Richard Giddens commented on lack of police and code enforcement in the City. 

 

George Guynn commented on the recall petitions of 2008 and expressed concern about Council expenses 

to attend Casa Conference.  

 

Chuck Kingeter thanked the Council for the above proclamations  and commented on opposing the 

Redevelopment Agency. 



September 6, 2011 City Council / Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 2 

 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  - None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers 

should be identified at this time.) 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

Joint City Council / Redevelopment Agency / Housing Authority  

4. Council/Agency/Commission Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and Special Meetings 

of the Suisun City Council, Redevelopment Agency Board and Housing Authority Board 

held on August 16, 2011 and August 23, 2011– (Hobson).    

Motioned by Council / Board Member Derting and seconded by Council/ Board 

Member Hudson to approve Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously by the 

members present.  

GENERAL BUSINESS 

City Council 

5. Adoption of AB X1 27 Ordinance and Resolution Denouncing State Raids on Local 

Government – (Garben). 

a. Council Adoption Ordinance No. 720:  Determining that it Will Comply with the 

Voluntary Alternative Redevelopment Program Pursuant to Part 1.9 of Division 24 of the 

California Health and Safety Code in Order to Permit the Continued Existence and 

Operation of the Suisun City Redevelopment Agency. 

b. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2011-83: Denouncing the State of California for 

Stripping the City of Basic Tax Revenues and Spending Authority Required for Provision 

of Core Services to Local Taxpayers. 

George Guynn stated opposition to continuing the Redevelopment Agency and expressed 

concern about the financial responsibility of the Redevelopment Agency. 

Chuck Kingeter  suggested a workshop on the pros and cons of keeping the Redevelopment 

Agency. 

Motioned by Council Member Derting and seconded by Council Member Hudson to 

adopt Ordinance No. 720. Motion carried by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Derting, Hudson, Segala 

NOES: Council Member Sanchez 

ABSENT: Council Member Day 

 

Motioned by Council Member Derting and seconded by Council Member Segala to 

adopt Resolution No. 2011-83. Motion carried by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Derting, Hudson, Segala 

NOES: Council Member Sanchez 

ABSENT: Council Member Day 

 



September 6, 2011 City Council / Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 3 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

City Council 

6. PUBLIC HEARING  (CONTINUED FROM AUGUST 16, 2011) 

Council Adoption of Resolution 2011-84:  Approving a Preferred Land Use Alternative for 

the 2035 General Plan Update – (Wooden).     

 7:52 PM - Mayor Sanchez left the Council Chambers. 

8:02 PM -  Mayor Sanchez returned to the Council Chambers. 

 8:25 PM – Council Member Hudson left the Council Chambers 

8:27 PM – Council Member Hudson returned to the Council Chambers  

Mayor Sanchez opened the public hearing.   

Robert Schwartz representing the Hoffman Company discussed the zoning of the five-acre 

site by the Arco Station 

Chuck Kingeter  commented in favor of Alternative A, commended the Planning 

Commission for their recommendations and recommended Parcels 14, 15, 16, and 17 be 

agriculture space in order not to infringe upon Travis, and commented on the decline of 

retail.  

Ted Aksnes  suggested a mitigation bank for his property (Parcel 18) which is a conservation 

easement for endangered species.  

Hearing no further comments, Mayor Sanchez closed the public hearing.  After 

discussing various alternatives, Mayor Sanchez continued the Item to a later meeting. 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only.) 

7. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff –  

8. Mayor/Council –Chair/Boardmembers  

a. Workshop of Fiscal Issues. Council discussed setting regular dates for budget discussions 

and decided to meet on September 20. 

Council Member Segala suggested making a recommendation to Caltrans to designate 

Highway 12 between Pennsylvania Avenue and Walters Road that tractor trailers be limited 

to the right lane. 

Council Member Derting commented on the traffic violations at Sunset and Highway 12.  

CLOSED SESSION   

City Council   

Pursuant to California Government Code section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 

Session for the purpose of:   

9. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 

Name of case Edmond Dadisho v. City of Suisun City/York   

Electronic Adjudication Management System (EAMS)  Case #ADJ7545364 

 



September 6, 2011 City Council / Redevelopment Agency Minutes Page 4 

 

 

Joint City Council / Redevelopment Agency    

10. PERSONNEL MATTERS    

Public Employee Performance Evaluation:  City Manager/Executive Director.   

 9:39 PM – Mayor Sanchez recessed the City Council to closed session and stated no 

decisions would be made in Closed Session. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

9:52 PM – Mayor Sanchez reconvened the City Council and stated no decisions had 

been made in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Sanchez adjourned the City Council meeting at  9:52  

PM. 

 

_________________________ 

Linda Hobson, CMC 

City Clerk 

 

 



PREPARED BY:  Jason Garben, Economic Development Director 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Suzanne Bragdon, Executive Director 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2011 

 

CITY/AGENCY AGENDA ITEM:  File and Receive A Preliminary Draft Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule Pursuant to Part 1.8 of Division 24 of the California Health and 

Safety Code. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   None.  There are no obligations listed that are not contemplated in the       

FY 2011-12 budget. 
 

STAFF REPORT:  As part of the State’s budget bills, the California Legislature has adopted, and 

the Governor has signed, AB 26 X1 (AB 26) and AB 27 X1 (AB 27) into law.  AB 26 requires 

Redevelopment Agencies to prepare a Preliminary Draft Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

(PDROPS) by September 30, 2011.  On August 11, 2011, the California Supreme Court issued a 

partial stay on the effectiveness of AB 26 and AB 27 until the Court can rule on the 

constitutionality of the two bills.  The stay, issued on August 11, 2011, was updated on August 17, 

2011, as the Court issued a revised stay.  In light of the pending litigation, adopting a PDROPS is 

prudent and would only be valid if the Agency were dissolved.  Agency legal counsel has advised 

staff to file the PDROPS with the City by September 30, 2011. 

 

The PDROPS must list the minimum amounts that must be paid by a successor Agency (in the 

event of dissolution) over a six (6) month period to fulfill its enforceable obligations during that 

period, with the first schedule covering January 1, 2012 through June 30, 2012.  The PDROPS also 

includes sources of payment for each obligation. 
 

The PDROPS includes the following items: 
 

• Debt Service Payments on Existing Bonds and Loans 

• Pass-Through Payments 

• Employee Costs 

• Audit Costs 

• Project Costs 

• Administrative Costs 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended the Agency file and the City receive the attached 

Preliminary Draft Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule Pursuant to Part 1.8 of Division 24 of 

the California Health and Safety Code. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Preliminary Draft Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 



Name of Redevelopment Agency: Suisun City Redevelopment Agency Page 1  of 1 Page

Project Area(s) Suisun City Redevelopment Area 9/15/11

DRAFT RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE January 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2012
Per AB 26 - Section 34167 and 34169 (*)

Source of EOPS Total

Project Name / Debt Obligation Payee Description Payment Aug - Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June Total

1    1998 Tax Exempt Bonds US Bank Bonds issue to fund Redevelopment Proj 20,424,242.00 554,080.00 RPTTF 394,540.00 159,540.00 159,540.00$     

2    2003 Series A Tax Allocation Bonds US Bank Bonds issue to fund Redevelopment Proj 5,265,000.00 515,498.00 RPTTF 257,749.00 257,749.00 257,749.00$     

3    2003 Series B Tax Allocation Bonds US Bank Refunding of 1993 Tax Alloc Bonds 31,780,000.00 3,044,049.00 RPTTF 2,404,524.00 639,525.00 639,525.00$     

4    Marina Expansion Loan Dept. of Boating & Waterways Marina Rehabilitation 6,641,762.00 427,070.00 RPTTF 427,070.00 -$                  

5    Marina Expansion Loan Sheldon Oil Marina Rehabilitation 2,358,829.00 268,000.00 RPTTF 268,000.00 -$                  

6    Agency owned parcels County of Solano Property Taxes & Assessments -                        67,100.00              RPTTF 67,100.00           -$                  

7    Agency owned parcels Various Repair & Maint. of Agency Owned Bldgs. -                        75,000.00              RPTTF 45,000.00           5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 30,000.00$       

8    Reimbursement-333 Sunset Lease City of Suisun City City made payments on Agency's behalf 373,850.00           48,770.00              RPTTF -                      48,770.00 48,770.00$       

9    Employee/Admin Costs/Contract Various Employee/Admin Costs 550,000.00 550,000.00 RPTTF 275,000.02 45,833.33 45,833.33 45,833.33 45,833.33 45,833.33 45,833.33 274,999.98$     

10  Suisun Harbor Square Main Street West Harbor Square Deevelopment 87,840.00 87,840.00 Fund Balance 87,840.00 -$                  

11  SERAF Payment LMIHF SERAF 6,901,505.00 -                         RPTTF -$                  

12  Lease Reimbursement Agreement City of Suisun City Agency's share of Civic Center COP 1,654,618.00 -                         RPTTF -$                  

13  Iconic Sign Earthquake & Structures, Inc. Gateway Sign Design 11,300.00 11,300.00 Fund Balance 11,300.00 -$                  

14  Unfunded Liability City of Suisun City PERS & Vacation 157,083.00 RPTTF -$                  

15  

16  

17  TOTAL 76,206,029.00 5,648,707.00 50,833.33 50,833.33 1,107,647.33 50,833.33 50,833.33 1,310,980.65$  

18  -$                  

19  Pass thru Agreement City of Suisun City Per section 33401 238,264.00 RPTTF 119,132.00 119,132.00 238,264.00$     

20  Pass thru Agreement Solano County Per section 33401 2,860,000.00 RPTTF 1,430,000.00 1,430,000.00 2,860,000.00$  

21  Pass thru Agreement County Superintendent of Schools Per section 33401 62,000.00 RPTTF 62,000.00 62,000.00$       

22  Pass thru Agreement Fairfield-Suisun Unified School Per section 33401 788,646.00 RPTTF 788,646.00 -$                  

23  Pass thru Agreement Solano Community College Per section 33401 103,000.00 RPTTF 103,000.00 103,000.00$     

24  Pass thru Agreement Boating Special Revenue Boating Taxes 4,451.00 RPTTF 4,451.00 4,451.00$         

25  Pass thru Agreement BAAQMD Per section 33607.5 232.00 RPTTF 232.00 -$                  

26  Pass thru Agreement Suisun Resource Conservation Per section 33607.5 88.00 RPTTF 88.00 -$                  

27  Pass thru Agreement Solano Irrigation District Per section 33607.5 294.00 RPTTF 294.00 -$                  

28  -$                  

29  TOTAL 4,056,975.00 5,027,383.02 1,549,132.00 1,549,132.00$  

30  -$                  

31  ** pass through obligations are estimated and will vary depending upon annual tax increment revenue -$                  

32  -$                  

33  Totals - This Page 76,206,029.00$    9,705,682.00$       ########### 50,833.33$  ########### 50,833.33$    50,833.33$    2,860,112.65$  

34  Totals - Page 2 -$                      -$                       -$                -$             -$                -$               -$               -$                  

35  Totals - Page 3 -$                      -$                       -$                -$             -$                -$               -$               -$                  

Totals - Page 4 -$                      -$                       -$                -$             -$                -$               -$               -$                  

Totals - Other Obligations -$                      -$                       -$                -$             -$                -$               -$               -$                  

  Grand total - All Pages 76,206,029.00$    9,705,682.00$       ########### 50,833.33$  ########### 50,833.33$    50,833.33$    2,860,112.65$  

RPTTF = Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund

ACA = Administrative Cost Allowance

Total Outstanding 

Debt or Obligation

Payments by month
Total Due During 

Fiscal Year

Pass Through Obligations **



PREPARED BY:   Jason D. Garben, Economic Development Director 

APPROVED BY:                Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 20, 2011 

CITY/AGENCY AGENDA ITEM:   Adoption of Remittance Agreement Between the Suisun 

City Redevelopment Agency and the City of Suisun City: 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2011-___: Approving a Remittance Agreement with 

the Suisun City Redevelopment Agency in Accordance with AB X1 27; and 

b. Agency Adoption of Resolution No. RA 2011-___: Approving a Remittance Agreement 

with the City of Suisun City in Accordance with AB X1 27. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Adoption of this Remittance Agreement provides for the Agency to remit 

funds to the City in order for the City to make payments necessary pursuant to AB X1 27 (AB 27) 

in order to participate in the Alternative Voluntary Redevelopment Program.  The payment is not 

due until January 15
th

, 2012, and is subject to pending litigation challenging the validity of AB 26 

and AB 27 currently under consideration by the California Supreme Court.  An AAR will be 

required prior to remittance of any funding to the City, as the final amount due to the State (which 

is pending an appeal filed in August with the State Department of Finance) is not known, and 

pending “clean-up” legislation to AB 27 may impact the sources of Agency funds transferred to the 

City. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND:  As part of the State’s budget bills, the California Legislature has adopted, and 

the Governor has signed, AB X1 26 (AB 26) and AB 27 into law.  AB 26 essentially dissolves 

Redevelopment Agencies across the State, and AB 27 provides for an Alternative Voluntary 

Redevelopment Program that essentially allows the Agency to continue normal operations if the 

City adopts an “opt-in” Ordinance that requires the City to divert local tax increment revenues to 

the State.  On September 6, 2011, an “opt-in” ordinance determining the City will comply with the 

Voluntary Alternative Redevelopment Program pursuant to AB 27 was adopted, requiring the City 

to make payments to the State of a $4,480,454 in FY 2011-12, as published by the State 

Department of Finance (the “DOF”) on August 1, 2011.  In subsequent years, the payments would 

be calculated based on the Agency’s share of the statewide total of $400,000,000, with adjustments 

based on the growth or decline of tax increment revenue, along with additional payments if the 

Agency were to incur additional debt.  Staff estimates the payment based on current information for 

FY 2012-13 would be approximately $1,050,000. 
 

STAFF REPORT:  As previously noted, the City is responsible for making the payments required 

to participate in the Alternative Voluntary Redevelopment Program (AVRP) pursuant to AB 27.  

However, AB 27 provides the Agency may enter into an agreement with the City that authorizes the 

transfer of Agency funds to the City, which are ultimately utilized to make the payments necessary 

to participate in the AVRP.  The attached resolutions approve a Remittance Agreement that 

authorizes the Agency to transfer funds to the City pursuant to AB 27. 

As previously mentioned, litigation is before the California Supreme Court challenging the validity 

of AB 26 and AB 27.  The Remittance Agreement, if adopted, would become effective only if and 



 

when the stay ordered by the California Supreme Court in the lawsuit has been lifted or dissolved; 

provided, however, if the decision on the merits in the lawsuit or any other lawsuit challenging the 

validity of AB 26 and/or 27 is that provisions of AB 27 authorizing the making payments to 

participate in the AVRP are invalid for any reason, the Remittance Agreement would be null and 

void. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the: 

1. Council Adopt Resolution No. 2011-___: Approving a Remittance Agreement with the 

Suisun City Redevelopment Agency in Accordance with AB X1 27; and 

2. Agency adopt Resolution No. RA 2011-___: Approving a Remittance Agreement with the 

City of Suisun City in Accordance with AB X1 27. 

   

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution No. 2011-___: Approving a Remittance Agreement with the Suisun City 

Redevelopment Agency in Accordance with AB X1 27.   

 

2. Resolution No. RA 2011-___: Approving a Remittance Agreement with the City of Suisun 

City in Accordance with AB X1 27. 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

APPROVING A REMITTANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE SUISUN CITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY IN ACCORDANCE WITH AB X1 27 

 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Suisun (the “Agency”) 

administers the implementation of various redevelopment projects, programs, and activities 

within the redevelopment project area in the City of Suisun (the “City”); and   

 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2011, the State Legislature passed Assembly Bill X1 26 (“AB 

26”) and Assembly Bill X1 27 (“AB 27”), and on June 29, 2011, Governor Edmund G. Brown 

Jr. signed AB 26 and AB 27; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 26 generally prevents redevelopment agencies from entering into new 

or amended obligations or contracts, and eliminates redevelopment agencies and winds down 

their operations; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 allows redevelopment agencies to remain in existence, and to gain 

an exemption from the provisions of AB 26, in exchange for the payment of substantial sums of 

money on an annual basis to the Solano County Auditor-Controller (County Auditor); and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 codified Part 1.9 of Division 24 of the California Health and Safety 

Code (“Part 1.9”), which now comprises a portion of the California Community Redevelopment 

Law; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 establishes a “voluntary alternative redevelopment program” 

(“Alternative Program”), whereby the Agency is authorized to continue to exist upon the City’s 

enactment of an ordinance to comply with the provisions of Part 1.9; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 provides that, in order to enable the Agency to be included in the 

Alternative Program, the City must notify the County Auditor, the State Controller, and the State 

Department of Finance, on or before November 1, 2011, that the City will comply with the 

provisions of Part 1.9 by adoption of an ordinance consistent with Part 1.9; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted an Ordinance on September 6, 2011, to comply 

with Part 1.9 (“Ordinance”) and notified the County Auditor, the State Controller and the State 

Department of Finance of its adoption; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 requires the City to make specified remittances to the County 

Auditor in order to continue the existence of the Agency, as prescribed in Part 1.9 and the 

Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 34194.2 of AB 27 authorizes the Agency to enter into an agreement 

with the City, whereby the Agency will transfer a portion of its tax increment to the City, in an 



 

 

 

amount not to exceed the amount of the City’s annual remittance to the County Auditor 

(“Remittance Agreement”), for the purpose of financing activities within the City’s 

redevelopment area that are related to accomplishing the Agency’s project goals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Remittance Agreement is to provide for the transfer of 

funds by the Agency to the City in an amount not to exceed the amount of the remittance 

payments required by Part 1.9, utilizing net available tax increment and other funds in this 

current fiscal year and forthcoming fiscal years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the validity of AB 26 and AB 27 is being challenged in a lawsuit entitled 

California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Matosantos, et al., California Supreme Court 

Case No. S194861 (the “CRA Lawsuit”) and other lawsuits challenging the validity of AB 26 

and AB 27 may be filed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pending a decision on the merits in the CRA Lawsuit, the California 

Supreme Court has stayed the effectiveness of portions of AB 26 and AB 27, including, but not 

limited to, Sections 34194, 34194.1 and 34194.2; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City for the Remittance Agreement to become 

effective only if and when the stay ordered by the California Supreme Court in the CRA Lawsuit 

has been lifted or dissolved; provided, however, if the decision on the merits in the CRA Lawsuit 

or any other lawsuit challenging the validity of AB 26 and/or 27 is that provisions of AB 27 

authorizing the making of remittances to the County Auditor are invalid for any reason, this 

Agreement shall be null and void and of no effect; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and duly considered the Staff Report, 

documents and other evidence presented at the meeting and believes that it will be in the best 

interest of the City and the health, safety, morals and welfare of its residents, and in accord with 

the public purpose and provisions of applicable state and local law and requirements, for the City 

to enter into a Remittance Agreement with the Agency and to allow the Agency to participate in 

the Alternative Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF SUISUN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this 

reference.  

 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby approves the Remittance Agreement attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

SECTION 3. The City Manager, or designee, is authorized on the City’s behalf, to 

execute the Remittance Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 4. The City Manager, or designee, is authorized, on the City’s behalf, to 

execute and deliver all other documents and take all actions necessary and appropriate to 



 

 

 

facilitate the Agency’s continued participation in the Alternative Program, after the City has 

enacted the Ordinance and while the Ordinance remains in effect. 

  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Suisun City Council meeting held 

on September 20, 2011, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmembers:__________________________________________ 

NOES:   Councilmembers:__________________________________________ 

ABSENT: Councilmembers:__________________________________________ 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:__________________________________________ 

 

 WITNESS my hand and seal of said City this 20th day of September, 2011. 

 

 

 

          _______________________  

          Linda Hobson, CMC  

          City Clerk 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. RA 2011-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUISUN CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING 

A REMITTANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH AB X1 27 

 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Suisun (the “Agency”) 

administers the implementation of various redevelopment projects, programs, and activities 

within the redevelopment project area in the City of Suisun (the “City”); and   

 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2011, the State Legislature passed Assembly Bill X1 26 (“AB 

26”) and Assembly Bill X1 27 (“AB 27”), and on June 29, 2011, Governor Edmund G. Brown 

Jr. signed AB 26 and AB 27; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 26 generally prevents redevelopment agencies from entering into new 

or amended obligations or contracts, and eliminates redevelopment agencies and winds down 

their operations; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 allows redevelopment agencies to remain in existence, and to gain 

an exemption from the provisions of AB 26, in exchange for the payment of substantial sums of 

money on an annual basis to the Solano County Auditor-Controller (“County Auditor”); and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 codified Part 1.9 of Division 24 of the California Health and Safety 

Code (“Part 1.9”), which now comprises a portion of the California Community Redevelopment 

Law; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 establishes a “voluntary alternative redevelopment program” 

(“Alternative Program”), whereby the Agency is authorized to continue to exist upon the City’s 

enactment of an ordinance to comply with the provisions of Part 1.9; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 provides that, in order to enable the Agency to be included in the 

Alternative Program, the City must notify the County Auditor, the State Controller, and the State 

Department of Finance, on or before November 1, 2011, that the City will comply with the 

provisions of Part 1.9 by adoption of an ordinance consistent with Part 1.9; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted an ordinance to comply with Part 1.9 

(“Ordinance”) and notified the County Auditor, the State Controller and the State Department of 

Finance of its adoption; and 

 

WHEREAS, AB 27 requires the City to make specified remittances to the County 

Auditor in order to continue the existence of the Agency, as prescribed in Part 1.9 and the 

Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 34194.2 of AB 27 authorizes the Agency to enter into an agreement 

with the City, whereby the Agency will transfer a portion of its tax increment to the City, in an 

amount not to exceed the amount of the City’s annual remittance to the County Auditor 



 

 

 

(“Remittance Agreement”), for the purpose of financing activities within the City’s 

redevelopment area that are related to accomplishing the Agency’s project goals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Remittance Agreement is to provide for the transfer of 

funds by the Agency to the City in an amount not to exceed the amount of the remittance 

payments required by Part 1.9, utilizing net available tax increment and other funds in this 

current fiscal year and forthcoming fiscal years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the validity of AB 26 and AB 27 is being challenged in a lawsuit entitled 

California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Matosantos, et al., California Supreme Court 

Case No. S194861 (the “CRA Lawsuit”) and other lawsuits challenging the validity of AB 26 

and AB 27 may be filed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pending a decision on the merits in the CRA Lawsuit, the California 

Supreme Court has stayed the effectiveness of portions of AB 26 and AB 27, including, but not 

limited to, Sections 34194, 34194.1 and 34194.2; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Agency for the Remittance Agreement to become 

effective only if and when the stay ordered by the California Supreme Court in the CRA Lawsuit 

has been lifted or dissolved; provided, however, if the decision on the merits in the CRA Lawsuit 

or any other lawsuit challenging the validity of AB 26 and/or 27 is that provisions of AB 27 

authorizing the making of remittances to the County Auditor are invalid for any reason, this 

Agreement shall be null and void and of no effect; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Agency Board has reviewed and duly considered the Staff Report, 

documents and other evidence presented at the meeting and believes that it will be in the best 

interest of the Agency and the health, safety, morals and welfare of the residents of the City, and 

in accord with the public purpose and provisions of applicable state and local law and 

requirements, for the Agency to enter into a Remittance Agreement with the City and for the 

Agency to participate in the Alternative Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY OF THE  CITY OF SUISUN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this 

reference.  

 

SECTION 2. The Agency Board hereby approves the Remittance Agreement attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

SECTION 3. The Executive Director, or designee, is authorized on the Agency’s behalf, 

to execute the Remittance Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 4. The Executive Director, or designee, is authorized, on the Agency’s 

behalf, to execute and deliver all other documents and take all actions necessary and appropriate 

to facilitate the Agency’s continued participation in the Alternative Program, after the City has 

enacted the Ordinance and while the Ordinance remains in effect.  



 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting  of the City of Suisun City Redevelopment 

Agency held on Tuesday, the 20
th

 of Septmber 2011, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  BOARDMEMBERS:                                             

NOES:  BOARDMEMBERS:                                          _____   

ABSTAIN: BOARDMEMBERS:                                             

ABSENT: BOARDMEMBERS:                                            

 

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City of Suisun City this 20
th

 of September, 2011. 

 

 

         

      Linda Hobson, CMC 

     Secretary 

 



PREPARED/APPROVED BY:   Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 20, 2011 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:   Budget Workshop in Response to State’s Actions to Eliminate 

Redevelopment 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No immediate impact. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND:  As part of the State’s budget bills, the California Legislature has adopted, and 

the Governor has signed, AB X1 26 (AB 26) and AB X1 27 (AB 27) into law.  AB26 calls for the 

elimination of the Redevelopment Agency. AB27 provides for an alternative voluntary 

redevelopment program that allows the Agency to continue operations if the City adopts to “opt-

in.”  This legislation enacted by the State results in a budget shortfall of approximately $1.4 million, 

no matter if the Agency is dissolved or retained.  The staff report from August 16, 2011 that 

provided analysis on retaining or dissolving the Agency is provided in Attachment 1. 

On September 6, 2011, the City Council opted to participate in the Alternative Voluntary 

Redevelopment Program, which requires payments of approximately $4.5 Million in FY 2011-12 

and approximately $1.05 Million in subsequent budget years. As a result of retaining the Agency, 

$12.6 million in real estate and other assets remain under Agency control, and the budget reductions 

of approximately $1.4 million will be delayed until FY 2012-13. 

It is important to note the California Redevelopment Association and the League of California 

Cities have sued the State in the California Supreme Court challenging the constitutionality of 

AB26 and AB27.  If these laws are reversed by the Supreme Court, additional budget reductions 

will be unnecessary. 

 

STAFF REPORT:  At the September 6, 2011, City Council meeting, Mayor Sanchez called for a 

public workshop to begin considering options and discussing with the community the preferred 

strategies for reducing the City’s overall budget by $1.4 million.  City staff has made a concerted 

effort to make the community aware of the workshop to bring to the surface as many ideas and 

perspectives on budget reductions as possible. 

In recent years, the City Council has reduced the City’s budget by 35%, cut the City workforce by 

10% and maintained a 25% General Fund reserve while avoiding significant service reductions, 

layoffs and furloughs through use of one-time funding, sales of assets and targeted spending 

reductions. However, due to the State’s action regarding Redevelopment and the City’s need to 

reduce spending by $1.4 million, or another 13% of its overall budget, some impact to service 

levels are likely. 

This workshop will include discussion of these major topic areas: 

1. FY 2011-12 Budget Perspective 

This budget year continued the multi-year trend of budget reductions, including an 

additional 5% reduction in the General Fund, freezing of all vacant positions and absorbing 



 

a fourth consecutive year of declining property values.  The budget was balanced through 

continuation of our bridging strategy that assumes a near-term infusion of sales tax proceeds 

when the Wal-Mart Supercenter project is constructed and operating.   

For more detail, see FT 2011-12 Budget Message (Attachment 2) and the complete budget 

document, which is posted online at http://www.suisun.com/AdminSrvcs/2011-

12Budget.html 

2. New Challenge – Redevelopment Legislation (Creates $1.4 Million Shortfall) 

The State’s enactment of significant changes to Redevelopment law resulted in a projected 

$1.4 million shortfall in the City’s budget.  This represents another 13% of necessary budget 

cuts on top of what the City has done in terms of cuts over the past three (3) to four (4) 

years.  The magnitude of this challenge is substantial.  For example, a 5% reduction in 

across-the-board staff costs would generate approximately $300,000 in savings.  Big 

picture, a reduction in staffing costs of 10% (i.e. furloughs or take-backs) plus keeping 

projected vacancies anticipated over the next six (6) months unfilled, would save the 

operating budget roughly $1.3 Million  

3. Departmental/Revenue Options 

Given the size of the challenge, eliminating certain services or functions within City 

Departments could be part of the solution to achieve the necessary cost savings. Options for 

cost savings across each City department will be presented for discussion.  These types of 

cuts, though generally requiring layoffs, could reduce employee compensation concessions. 

4. Policy Direction 

The Council will be asked to provide policy direction in a number of areas. Based upon that 

direction, staff will develop strategies and implementation plans for future Council action. 

Those policy areas include: 

• Eliminate or freeze all vacant positions 

• Review discretionary programs for possible service level curtailment, including 

associated staff reductions 

• Employee wage and/or benefit concessions 

• Eliminating or curtailing service levels in core services 

• Revenue enhancements 

• Use of General Fund reserves 

A draft of the presentation outlining many of the areas is attached. 

While these are undoubtedly challenging economic times, the partnership forged between the 

community, the City Council, and the City management team and employees will allow us to 

continue to provide the best services possible for Suisun City residents.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Conduct the Workshop: Discussion of Fiscal Issues; and 

2. Provide Staff direction on future budget decisions   



 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. City Council Staff report from August 16, 2011, discussing Redevelopment alternatives 

2. FY 2011-12 Budget Message 

3. Draft Workshop Presentation (work in progress) 





































































Latest version:  9/15/11 @ 12:40 1

1

Budget Workshop,
September 20, 2011:

The State’s At It 
Again!

FY 2011-12:
We dodged the bullet so far!

• No Reduction in Services
• No Layoffs
• No Furloughs
• No Tax increases
• Prudent use of Reserves to “weather the 

storm” but still keep over 20%

2

3

Big Picture:  Strategies
• Budgetary cuts year to year of roughly 35% in 

the GF; 45% in RDA ops; 98% RDA projects
• On top of 10% reduction in workforce to date; 

existing vacancies:
– PW Director/City Engineer
– Construction Inspector
– Management Analyst
– FT to PT Community Services Director
– Recreation Supervisor
– Police Officer
– Public Safety Admin Supervisor
– Youth Services Officer

4

Budget 101:  The Basics!

The General Fund and Redevelopment Agency Funds are over 
60% of the entire operating budget for the City!



Latest version:  9/15/11 @ 12:40 2

General Fund/RDA

5

General Fund/RDA

6

Police is the 
single largest 
Personnel 
expense!

7

The World Changed:
AB1X 26 and AB1X 27

• The State budget assumes $1.7B from 
local governments to balance its budget

• Two Pieces of Legislation Joined at the 
Hip
– AB1X 26:  RDA’s eliminated
– AB1X 27:  Just kidding… If you ‘voluntarily’ 

pay the ransom we are extorting from you

8

Whether we Play or Fold,
the cost is the same!

Pay to Play
• $4.5 million Year 1
• $1.05 million 

beginning FY 2012-13
• Year 2+:  $2.2 m in 

Housing set aside
• Year 2+:  $700k of 

other RDA monies

Fold
• Budget hole of $1.4 m 

Year 1
• Assets of $12.6 m at 

risk
• Ongoing RDA/HSG 

loss of $2.9 m
• New Property tax of 

$380k
REGARDLESS OF CHOICE:  BUDGET IMBALANCE OF $1.4 million



Latest version:  9/15/11 @ 12:40 3

9

Our INTERESTS, in no order of 
priority

• Find $1.4 million
• Stay together as a team; we’re all in this 

together!
• Avoid lay-offs
• Continue to serve the community… why 

we are in business!

THIS TEAM, OUR TEAM – SUISUN CITY – IS UNIQUE…  REVEL IN IT!!!
10

Employee Compensation

• Council goal to improve our market 
position

• Since 2005--
– Police (SCPOA):  23% increase
– SEIU & Management:  18% increase

11

Putting $1.4m in Perspective
• 5% reduction (comp or furlough) = $365K
• Health costs = $20k for family; $15k for two
• PERS:  19% (misc); 42% (safety)
• Assessed Valuation (AV) recover 50% of loss = 

no gap
• 1% AV increase = $75K RDA
• New development opportunities….

Projected Vacancies + 10% Furlough/Employee

Take-backs = $1.3 million

Optional Cuts

• (To be prepared)

12



Latest version:  9/15/11 @ 12:40 4

13

Revenue Options
• Fee Enhancements (ensuring the cost of 

services are fully recovered, subject to 
market conditions)

• Consider charging for certain police & fire 
department responses

• Explore new General Revenues, such as 
Utility User Tax, Parcel Tax, Consolidated 
Citywide Assessment District.

14

Policy Choices:  
How do we reduce the gap?

• Do we adjust service levels?
• Do we ask for employee 

concessions/take-backs? Across the 
Board?

• Do we fill vacancies or leave open?
• Should we reduce staff, either through 

furloughs or direct layoffs?  
• What role should revenue enhancements 

play?

15

Conclusions/Questions
Silver Linings

• We could prevail in Court!
• We have until next July 2012 before the $1.4 

million takes effect
• We could use some of our savings this fiscal 

year to pay for any one-time costs for the “New 
Normal.” (Re-training, new software/equipment)

• As property values go up, the gap dissolves (1% 
increase in AV equals $75,000 net to RDA; 20% 
would raise $1.5 million)—Tax Increment 
already dropped over 35%! 




